


Bernhard Gregg | Manager Facilities (Syd) | Facilities Management
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
wW: www.rba.gov.au










Hi Matt,
Complaints in general or just bathroom related complaints?
Many Thanks,

Marianne Frith | Administrator | H.C. Coombs Centre for Financial Studies
Facilities Management Department | RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 122A Kirribilli Avenue, Kirribilli NSW 2061
p: +61 2 9409 1500 | f: +61 2 9409 1599 | w: www.hccoombscentre.gov.au

From: NOLAN, Matt

Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2013 10:31 AM

To: GUTIERREZ, Linh; FRITH, Marianne

Subject: Complaints about the Bathrooms at Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Marianne and Linh,

Frank has requested a note on any complaints that we have received from either tenant at Carabella Street. Could
you please investigate and respond at your earliest convenience.

Kind regards,

Matt Nolan | Chief Manager | Facilities Management Department
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
| w: www.rba.gov.au







Please note that was present at both condition reports, as does not allow access to the
premises unless is there. accompanied me for the duration of both inspections, and ensured | noted
down the problematic cistern and grouting issues.

The only other main complaint from the tenants was in 2011 regarding the disruption caused during refurbishment
works including internal and external painting and kitchen and carpet replacement. The Bank issued the tenants
with a one-month rent free abatement for the disturbance, despite the tenants agreeing to remain in the premises
during the works. | will locate the relevant paper for you.

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

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 8:51 AM

To: FRITH, Marianne

Subject: RE: Complaints about the Bathrooms at Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Marianne,
Primarily around the bathroom, but it would be good to get a wider view.
Cheers,

Matt

From: FRITH, Marianne

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 7:45 AM

To: NOLAN, Matt; GUTIERREZ, Linh

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

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 10:03 AM

To: NOLAN, Matt

Cc: GUTIERREZ, Linh

Subject: RE: Complaints about the Bathrooms at Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Hi Matt,

Please refer to and for letters sent to each tenant regarding the rent free period in
October 2011.

If you need anymore information please let me know.
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

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 9:12 AM

To: NOLAN, Matt

Cc: GUTIERREZ, Linh

Subject: RE: Complaints about the Bathrooms at Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks Matt,

As a starting point please see attached a email trail regarding a toilet which was replaced in the ground floor unit
(unit 2) for in 2011.

Please also refer to:

1. condition report October 2012 - D12/322037 and . Both reports
documented that most bathroom fittings are worn/corroded, one toilet has a problematic cistern, another
bathroom needs to be regrouted/retiled.

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










Linh Gutierrez | Senior Manager | Property Services
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
| w: www.rba.gov.au

From: NOLAN, Matt

Sent: Thirsdav. 6 Jiine 2013 10:-59 AM

To:

Cc: GUTIERREZ, Linh; FRITH, Marianne

Subject: Unit 1 / 10 Carabella Street, Kirribilli [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi
Thanks very much for your time on the phone earlier.

As per discussion, could you please provide reverse brief with quotation in accordance with the
Legal Services Multi-Use List Deed between and the Commonwealth of Australia (LSMUL
Deed). The RBA request your assistance in drafting an appropriate response to the letter received
from the lessee’s of the above referenced property.

The RBA intent to determine the lease at the end of the term. The letter from the is
somewhat emotive and contemplates actions beyond the nature of the contractual relationship. We
are looking for a polite, un-emotive response that clearly articulates our rights as landlord to
terminate the lease. We are happy to extend the formal notice period in an endeavour to
demonstrate reasonableness.

| have also attached a file note from 2012 detailing communication with prior to
entering into the current lease, which contemplates the Bank’s intent to require vacant possession
at the end of the term.

Noting this letter has been sent directly to the Governor of the RBA we are requesting a timely
response. If you require any further information please contact me on

Kind regards,

Matt Nolan | Chief Manager | Facilities Management Department
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
| w: www.rba.gov.au

This e-mail message (along with any attachments) is intended only for the named addressee and could contain information that is
confidential or privileged. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any dissemination, copying or use of any of the
information is proh bited. Please notify us immediately by return e-mail if you are not the intended recipient and delete all copies of the
original message and attachments.

This footnote also confirms that this message has been checked for computer viruses.









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
















FILE NOTE
LEASE RENEWAL DISCUSSIONS

On Tuesday 31 July the Coombs Administrator spoke with over the
phone regarding the approaching expiry of her lease on 31 August 2012.

requested the Bank to consider resigning the lease for a further 24 month
period, if not longer.

The Administrator informed that the Bank was considering major
refurbishment works to the property in late 2013, and due to the disruption caused by
refurbishment works in 2011, it is proposed to complete the works while the tenancy
IS vacant. was advised that for this reason the Bank may only consider
offering a 12 month lease, but that her request would be considered.

On 17 August the Administrator called to confirm that the Bank are in a
position to offer a further 12 months lease due to the possibility of undertaking the
aforementioned works in 2013.

On 22 August 2012 a letter of offer was sent to tosigna 12
month lease from 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2013 D12/215248.

Marianne Frith
Administrator
Coombs Centre



From: FRITH, Marianne

Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2013 4:03 PM

To: GUTIERREZ, Linh

Subject: RE: - 10 Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Thanks Linh,

| will keep this on file.

Marianne Frith | Administrator | H.C. Coombs Centre for Financial Studies
Facilities Management Department | RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 122A Kirribilli Avenue, Kirribilli NSW 2061
p: +61 2 9409 1500 | f: +61 2 9409 1599 | w: www.hccoombscentre.gov.au

From: GUTIERREZ, Linh
Sent: Thursday, 2 May 2013 3:54 PM
To: FRITH, Marianne

Subject: - 10 Carabella Street [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Marianne,
Following .request to speak to me about the lease of Level 1, 10 Carabella Street, | contacted

at 11am today.

indicated that last year, you had flagged the Bank’s proposed plan to refurbish all of the bathrooms at 10
Carabella Street (both upstairs and downstairs) and it was the Bank’s intention to have vacant possession of the
premises to complete the works. asked for an update on the matter and whether the Bank was willing to renew
her lease.

| advised . thatwe have submitted a budget funding request to refurbish all of the bathrooms at 10 Carabella Street
and it is our intention to complete the works with both apartments vacant due to the difficulties encountered with the
previous refurbishment works. | indicated that while | could simply tell that it is subject to approval and we will not
find out until the start of the new financial year (July), my gut feeling is that it is likely to be approved and knowing the
amount of time involved in securing new accommodation, | recommended that : contacts local real estate agents as
soon as possible since the lease expires on 31 August 2013 and has four months to find a new property.

- asked if it was possible to be placed on monthly holdover while the refurbishment takes place — is happy to
move out for a few months — and to move back in once the refurbishment is complete. | advised :thatwe cannot
guarantee how long the refurbishment will take — while both apartments are vacant, the Bank may take the
opportunity (which it has not had a chance to do in over ten years) to conduct extensive assessments of the roof,
structure, wiring, etc. which may identify other works that need to be completed. In the process, the Bank may also
review the future ownership of 10 Carabella Street and whether it is continues to support the Bank’s core function. As
a result, we are not willing to commit to a new lease now or post-refurbishment. | emphasised that if approval is
granted to proceed with the refurbishment, we will serve notice to terminate lease at expiry on 31 August 2013.

' stated the view that we are only refurbishing bathrooms and she is happy to put up with it, or move out for a few
months while the work is undertaken. | advised that given the difficulties encountered with the refurbishment in
2011, we do not believe it is feasible to complete the works while the apartments are tenanted — particularly as the

apartments will not be habitable if there are no bathroom facilities. : acknowledged understanding of the Bank’s
position and asked that | pass on request for the Bank to consider renewing lease when the works are
complete.

| repeated my recommendation that : should contact local real estate agents as soon as possible to secure new
accommodation as the process will take significant time.  :thanked me for calling and asked us to let know
if the refurbishment is approved to proceed.

Regards,



Linh Gutierrez | Senior Manager | Property Services
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
| w: www.rba.gov.au



RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA

To Senior Manager, Property Services Date 27 August 2012

From Administrator,
H.C. Coombs Centre

RESIDENTIAL TENANCY AGREEMENT
FIRST FLOOR, 10 CARABELLA STREET, KIRRIBILLI
FY.PS 2012/62

Attached (in duplicate) is the Residential Tenancy Agreement for the First Floor, 10
Carabella Street, Kirribilli.

For your records, details of the Agreement are:

Parties: Reserve Bank of Australia and

For: First Floor, 10 Carabella Street, Kirribilli

The Agreement is correct for execution under Power of Attorney.

Marianne Frith
Administrator
H.C. Coombs Centre

Rachand deommt miow g o evelin e eczoution
AG(CS) appreval  Aaved w TRIM: DI2/165395.

319/ 12



)

Residential Tenancies Regulation 2010 Schedule 1 Standard Form Agreement (Clause 4(1))

SAS
Standard form ‘(!!“_,_)’ Eair
Residential tenancy agreement  N2W | Trading

Landlord Name (1): Landlord Name (2):

RESEAVE RANK OF AvsTRALIA

Address for services of notices (can be an agent’s address):

Telephone number (of landlord or agent):

Tenant’s Name (1): Tenant’s Name (2): |
Tenant's Name (3): Add all other tenants here;
/ ,//

Address for services of notices (if different to address of premises):

Postcode:
Telephone number/s:
Landlord’s agent:
Address for services of notices:

Postcode:

Telephone number/s:

Premises:

(a) location

FIRsT FLOOR 1O CARAMELLA STREET, KIRRAIBILL] Nswo 206/
(b) inclusions

LWek v GARAGE

Insert inclusions, for example a common parking space or furniture provided. Attach a separate list if necessary.

Term:

. . For a fixed term agreement insert the term.
The term of this agreement is 12 weeeks/months/ YEBER, | Orherwise leave blank or write ‘periodic’

startingon| @) / 0691 12 andendingon | 31/ o/ /3

Rent:| |, |25~ |aweek E fortnight payable in advance starting on |©1/ ©9/ 12

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 1332 20. | 1







The Agreement

Right to occupy the premises

1. The landlord agrees that the tenant has the right to
occupy the residential premises during the tenancy.
The residential premises include the additional
things (if any) noted under 'Premises’.

2. The landlord agrees to give the tenant:

2.1

a copy of this agreement before or when this
agreement is signed and given by the tenant
to the landlord or a person on the landlord’s
behalf, and

2.2 a copy of this agreement signed by both

Rent

the landlord and the tenant as soon as is
reasonably practicable.

3. The tenant agrees:

3.1
3.2

3.3

to pay rent on time, and
to reimburse the landlord for the cost of

replacing rent deposit books or rent cards lost

by the tenant,
and

to reimburse the landlord for the amount of
any fees paid by the landlord to a bank or
other authorised deposit-taking institution
as a result of funds of the tenant not being
available for rent payment on the due date.

4. The landlord agrees:

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

to provide the tenant with at least one means

to pay rent for which the tenant does not
incur a cost (other than bank fees or other
account fees usually payable for the tenant's
transactions) and that is reasonably available
to the tenant, and

not to require the tenant to pay more than

2 weeks rent in advance or to pay rent for a
period of the tenancy before the end of the
previous period for which rent has been paid,
and

not to require the tenant to pay rent by a
cheque or other negotiable instrument that is
post-dated, and

to accept payment of unpaid rent after the
landlord has given a termination notice on
the ground of failure to pay rent if the tenant
has not vacated the residential premises, and

4.5

4.6

4.7

not to use rent paid by the tenant for the
purpose of any amount payable by the tenant
other than rent, and

to give a rent receipt to the tenant if rent is
paid in person (other than by cheque) and to
make a rent receipt available for collection
by the tenant or to post it to the residential
premises if rent is paid by cheque, and

to keep a record of rent paid under this
agreement and to provide a written
statement showing the rent record for a
specified period within 7 days of a request by
the tenant (unless the landlord has previously
provided a statement for the same period).

Note. The landlord and tenant may, by agreement,
change the manner in which rent is payable under this
agreement.

Rent increases

The landlord and the tenant agree that

the rent cannot be increased after the end of the
fixed term (if any) of this agreement or under this
agreement unless the landlord gives not less than
60 days written notice of the increase to the tenant.
The notice must specify the increased rent and the
day from which it is payable.

Note: Section 42 of the Residential Tenancies Act

2010 sets out the circumstances in which rent may be
increased during the fixed term of a residential tenancy
agreement. An additional term for this purpose may be
included in the agreement.

6. The landlord and the tenant agree:

6.1

6.2

that the increased rent is payable from the
day specified in the notice, and

that the landlord may cancel or reduce the
rent increase by a later notice that takes
effect on the same day as the original notice,
and

that increased rent under this agreement
is not payable unless the rent is increased
in accordance with this agreement and the
Residential Tenancies Act 2010 or by the
Consumer, Trader and Tenancy Tribunal.,

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 1332 20. | 3




Rent reductions
7. The landlord and the tenant agree that the

7.1

7.2
7.3

rent abates if the residential premises:

are destroyed, or become wholly or partly
uninhabitable, otherwise than as a result of a
breach of this agreement, or

cease to be lawfully usable as a residence, or
are compulsorily appropriated or acquired by
an authority.

8. The landlord and the tenant may, at any time

during this agreement, agree to reduce the rent
payable.

Payment of council rates, land tax, water and

other charges

9. The landlord agrees to pay:

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

rates, taxes or charges payable under any Act
(other than charges payable by the tenant
under this agreement), and

the installation costs and charges for initial
connection to the residential premises of an
electricity, water, gas, bottled gas or oil supply
service, and

all charges for the supply of electricity, gas
(except bottled gas) or oil to the tenant at the
residential premises that are not separately
metered, and

the costs and charges for the supply or hire
of gas bottles for the supply of bottled gas at
the commencement of the tenancy, and

all charges (other than water usage charges)
in connection with a water supply service to
separately metered residential premises, and

all charges in connection with a water supply
service to residential premises that are not
separately metered, and

all charges for the supply of sewerage
services (other than for pump out septic
services) or the supply or use of drainage
services to the residential premises, and

all charges for the availability of gas to the
residential premises if the premises do not
have any appliances, supplied by the landlord,
for which gas is required and the tenant does
not use gas supplied to the premises for any
purpose.

10. The tenant agrees to pay:

10.1

10.2

103

104

10.5

all charges for the supply of electricity, gas
(except bottled gas) or oil to the tenant at

the residential premises if the premises are
separately metered, and

all charges for the supply of bottled gas to
the tenant at the residential premises, and

all charges for pumping out a septic system
used for the residential premises, and

any excess garbage charges relating to the
tenant’s use of the residential premises, and

water usage charges, if the landlord has
installed water efficiency measures referred
to in clause 11 and the residential premises:

10.5.1 are separately metered, or
10.5.2 are not connected to a water supply service and

water is delivered by vehicle.

11. The landlord agrees that the tenant is not

12.

1.1

11.2

1.3

1.4

required to pay water usage charges unless:

the landlord gives the tenant a copy of the
part of the water supply authority’s bill
setting out the charges, or other evidence of
the cost of water used by the tenant, and

the landlord gives the tenant at least 21 days
to pay the charges, and

the landlord requests payment of the charges
by the tenant not later than 3 months after
the issue of the bill for the charges by the
water supply authority, and

the residential premises have the following
water efficiency measures:

11.4.1 all internal cold water taps and
single mixer taps for kitchen sinks
or bathroom hand basins on the
premises have a maximum flow rate
of 9 litres per minute,

all showerheads have a maximum
flow rate of 9 litres per minute,

there are no leaking taps at the
commencement of this agreement or
when the water efficiency measures
are installed, whichever is the later.

11.4.2

11.4.3

The landlord agrees to give the tenant the
benefit of, or an amount equivalent to, any rebate
received by the landlord for water usage charges
payable or paid by the tenant.

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 1332 20. | 4




Possession of the premises
13. The landlord agrees:

131

13.2

to make sure the residential premises are
vacant so the tenant can move in on the date
agreed, and

to take all reasonable steps to ensure that,

at the time of signing this agreement, there
is no legal reason why the premises cannot
be used as a residence for the term of this
agreement.

Tenant'’s right to quiet enjoyment
14. The landlord agrees:

141

14.2

14.3

that the tenant will have quiet enjoyment of
the residential premises without interruption
by the landlord or any person claiming by,
through or under the landlord or having
superior title to that of the landlord (such as
a head landlord), and

that the landlord or the landlord’s agent
will not interfere with, or cause or permit
any interference with, the reasonable peace,
comfort or privacy of the tenant in using the
residential premises, and

that the landlord or the landlord’s agent
will take all reasonable steps to ensure that
the landlord’s other neighbouring tenants
do not interfere with the reasonable peace,
comfort or privacy of the tenant in using the
residential premises.

Use of the premises by tenant
15. The tenant agrees:

15.1

15.2
15.3

154

15.5

not to use the residential premises, or cause
or permit the premises to be used, for any
illegal purpose, and

not to cause or permit a nuisance, and

not to interfere, or cause or permit
interference, with the reasonable peace,
comfort or privacy of neighbours, and

not to intentionally or negligently cause

or permit any damage to the residential
premises, and

not to cause or permit more people to reside
in the residential premises than is permitted
by this agreement.

16. The tenant agrees:

16.1

to keep the residential premises reasonably
clean, and

16.2

16.3

16.4

to notify the landlord as soon as practicable
of any damage to the residential premises,
and

that the tenant is responsible to the landlord
for any act or omission by a person who is
lawfully on the residential premises if the
person is only permitted on the premises with
the tenant’s consent and the act or omission
would be in breach of this agreement if done
or omitted by the tenant, and

that it is the tenant’s responsibility to replace
light globes and batteries for smoke detectors
on the residential premises.

17. The tenant agrees, when this agreement
ends and before giving vacant possession of the
premises to the landlord:

171

17.2

17.3

174

17.5

17.6

to remove all the tenant’s goods from the
residential premises, and

to leave the residential premises as nearly as
possible in the same condition, fair wear and
tear excepted, as at the commencement of
the tenancy, and

to leave the residential premises reasonably
clean, having regard to their condition at the
commencement of the tenancy, and

to remove or arrange for the removal of all
rubbish from the residential premises, and
to make sure that all light fittings on the
premises have working globes, and

to return to the landlord all keys, and other
opening devices or similar devices, provided
by the landlord.

Landlord’s general obligations for residential

premises

18. The landlord agrees:

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

to make sure that the residential premises are
reasonably clean and fit to live in, and

to make sure that all light fittings on the
residential premises have working light
globes on the commencement of the tenancy,
and

to keep the residential premises in a
reasonable state of repair, considering the
age of, the rent paid for and the prospective
life of the premises, and

not to interfere with the supply of gas,
electricity, water, telecommunications or other
services to the residential premises (unless
the interference is necessary to avoid danger

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au orcall 1332 20. | 5




to any person or enable maintenance or
repairs to be carried out), and

to comply with all statutory obligations
relating to the health or safety of the
residential premises.

18.5

Urgent repairs

19.

The landlord agrees to pay the tenant, within 14
days after receiving written notice from the tenant,
any reasonable costs (not exceeding $1,000) that
the tenant has incurred for making urgent repairs
to the residential premises (of the type set out
below) so long as:

19.1 the damage was not caused as a result of a
breach of this agreement by the tenant, and

the tenant gives or makes a reasonable
attempt to give the landlord notice of the
damage, and

the tenant gives the landlord a reasonable
opportunity to make the repairs, and

the tenant makes a reasonable attempt to
have any appropriate tradesperson named in
this agreement make the repairs, and

the repairs are carried out, where appropriate,
by licensed or properly qualified persons, and
the tenant, as soon as possible, gives or tries
to give the landlord written details of the
repairs, including the cost and the receipts for
anything the tenant pays for.

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

Note: The type of repairs that are urgent repairs are
defined as follows:

(@)

a burst water service,

(b) an appliance, fitting or fixture that uses water

(¢
(d
(e)
(1
(9
(h
(i)

»

or is used to supply water that is broken or not
functioning properly, so that a substantial amount
of water is wasted,

a blocked or broken lavatory system,
a serious roof leak,

a gas leak,

a dangerous electrical fault,
flooding or serious flood damage,
serious storm or fire damage,

a failure or breakdown of the gas, electricity or
water supply to the premises,
a failure or breakdown of any essential service on

the residential premises for hot water, cooking,
heating, cooling or laundering,

(k) any fault or damage that causes the premises to
be unsafe or insecure.

Sale of the premises
20. The landlord agrees:

20.1 to give the tenant written notice that the
landlord intends to sell the residential
premises, at least 14 days before the
premises are made available for inspection by
potential purchasers, and

to make all reasonable efforts to agree with
the tenant as to the days and times when the
residential premises are to be available for
inspection by potential purchasers.

20.2

21. The tenant agrees not to unreasonably refuse

to agree to days and times when the residential
premises are to be available for inspection by
potential purchasers.

22. The landlord and tenant agree:

22.1 that the tenant is not required to agree to
the residential premises being available for
inspection more than twice in a period of a
week, and

that, if they fail to agree, the landlord may
show the residential premises to potential
purchasers not more than twice in any period
of a week and must give the tenant at least
48 hours notice each time.

22.2

Landlord’s access to the premises
23. The landlord agrees that the landlord, the

landlord’s agent or any person authorised in
writing by the landlord, during the currency of this
agreement, may only enter the residential premises
in the following circumstances:

23.1 in an emergency (including entry for the
purpose of carrying out urgent repairs),

if the Consumer, Trader and Tenancy Tribunal
so orders,

if there is good reason for the landlord to
believe the premises are abandoned,

if there is good reason for serious concern
about the health of the tenant or any other
person on the residential premises and a
reasonable attempt has been made to obtain
consent to the entry,

to inspect the premises, if the tenant is given
at least 7 days written notice (no more than
4 inspections are allowed in any period of 12
months),

23.2

233

234

235

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 133220. | 6




24,

25.

26.

23.6 to carry out, or assess the need for, necessary
repairs, if the tenant is given at least 2 days
notice each time,

to carry out, or assess the need for, work
relating to statutory health and safety
obligations relating to the residential
premises, if the tenant is given at least 2 days
notice each time,

to show the premises to prospective tenants
on a reasonable number of occasions if the
tenant is given reasonable notice on each
occasion (this is only allowed during the last
14 days of the agreement),

23.9 to value the property, if the tenant is given 7
days notice (not more than one valuation is
allowed in any period of 12 months),

23.10 if the tenant agrees.

The landlord agrees that a person who enters
the residential premises under clause 23.5, 23.6,
23.7, 23.8 or 23.9 of this agreement:

24.1 must not enter the premises on a Sunday or a
public holiday, unless the tenant agrees, and

24.2 may enter the premises only between the
hours of 8.00 a.m. and 8.00 p.m., unless the
tenant agrees to another time, and

24.3 must, if practicable, notify the tenant of the
proposed day and time of entry.

The landlord agrees that, except in an
emergency (including to carry out urgent repairs),
a person other than the landlord or the landlord’s
agent must produce to the tenant the landlord’s or
the landlord’s agent's written permission to enter
the residential premises.

The tenant agrees to give access to the
residential premises to the landlord, the landlord’s
agent or any person, if they are exercising a right to
enter the residential premises in accordance with
this agreement.

23.7

23.8

Alterations and additions to the premises

21.

The tenant agrees:

27.1 not to install any fixture or renovate, alter or
add to the residential premises without the
landlord’s written permission, and

not to remove, without the landlord’s
permission, any fixture attached by the
tenant that was paid for by the landlord or
for which the landlord gave the tenant a
benefit equivalent to the cost of the fixture,
and

27.2

27.3 to notify the landlord of any damage caused
by removing any fixture attached by the
tenant, and

27.4 to repair any damage caused by removing
the fixture or compensate the landlord for the
reasonable cost of repair.

28. The landlord agrees not to unreasonably

refuse permission for the installation of a fixture
by the tenant or to a minor alteration, addition or
renovation by the tenant.

Locks and security devices
29. The landlord agrees:

29.1 to provide and maintain locks or other
security devices necessary to keep the
residential premises reasonably secure, and

to give each tenant under this agreement
a copy of the key or opening device or
information to open any lock or security
device for the residential premises or
common property to which the tenant is
entitled to have access, and

not to charge the tenant for the cost of
providing the copies except to recover the
cost of replacement or additional copies, and

not to alter, remove or add any lock or
other security device without reasonable
excuse (which includes an emergency, an
order of the Consumer, Trader and Tenancy
Tribunal, termination of a co-tenancy or an
apprehended violence order prohibiting a
tenant or occupant from having access) or
uniess the tenant agrees, and

to give each tenant under this agreement

a copy of any key or other opening device
or information to open any lock or security
device that the landlord changes as soon as
practicable (and no later than 7 days) after
the change.

29.2

29.3

294

29.5

30. The tenant agrees:

30.1 not to alter, remove or add any lock or
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
unless the landlord agrees, and

to give the landlord a copy of the key or
opening device or information to open

30.2

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 1332 20. | 7




any lock or security device that the tenant
changes within 7 days of the change.

31. A copy of a changed key or other opening device
need not be given to the other party if the
other party agrees not to be given a copy or the
Consumer, Trader and Tenancy Tribunal authorises a
copy not to be given or the other party is prohibited
from access to the residential premises by an
apprehended violence order.

Transfer of tenancy or sub-letting by tenant
32. The landlord and tenant agree that:

32.1 the tenant may, with the landlord’s written
permission, transfer the tenant's tenancy
under this agreement or sub-let the
residential premises, and

the landlord may refuse permission (whether
or not it is reasonable to do so) to the
transfer of the whole of the tenancy or
sub-letting the whole of the residential
premises, and

the landlord must not unreasonably refuse
permission to a transfer of part of a tenancy
or a sub-letting of part of the residential
premises, and

without limiting clause 32.3, the landlord
may refuse permission to a transfer of part
of the tenancy or to sub-letting part of

the residential premises if the number of
occupants would be more than is permitted
under this agreement or any proposed
tenant or sub-tenant is listed on a residential
tenancy database or it would result in
overcrowding of the residential premises.

32.2

323

324

Note: Clauses 32.3 and 32.4 do not apply to social
tenancy housing agreements.

33. The landlord agrees not to charge for giving
permission other than for the landlord’s reasonable
expenses in giving permission.

Change in details of landlord or landlord’s
agent
34. The landlord agrees:
34.1 if the name and telephone number or contact
details of the landlord change, to give the

tenant notice in writing of the change within
14 days, and

34.2 if the address of the landlord changes (and
the landlord does not have an agent), to give

the tenant notice in writing of the change
within 14 days, and

if the name, telephone number or business
address of the landlord’s agent changes or
the landlord appoints an agent, to give the
tenant notice in writing of the change or
the agent’s name, telephone number and
business address, as appropriate, within 14
days, and

if the landlord or landlord’s agent is a
corporation and the name or business
address of the corporation changes, to give
the tenant notice in writing of the change
within 14 days.

343

34.4

Copy of certain by-laws to be provided
[Cross out if not applicable]

35. The landlord agrees to give to the tenant within
7 days of entering into this agreement a copy of
the by-laws applying to the residential premises
if they are premises under the Strata Schemes
Management Act 1996, the Strata Schemes
(Leasehold Development) Act 1986, the Community
Land Development Act 1989 or the Community
Land Management Act 1989.

Mitigation of loss

36. The rules of law relating to mitigation of loss or
damage on breach of a contract apply to a breach
of this agreement. (For example, if the tenant
breaches this agreement the landlord will not be
able to claim damages for loss which could have
been avoided by reasonable effort by the landlord.)

Rental bond
[Cross out this clause if no rental bond is payable]

37. The landlord agrees that where the landlord
or the landlord’s agent applies to the Rental Bond
Board or the Consumer, Trader and Tenancy Tribunal
for payment of the whole or part of the rental bond
to the landlord, then the landlord or the landlord’s
agent will provide the tenant with details of the
amount claimed and with copies of any quotations,
accounts and receipts that are relevant to the
claim and a copy of a completed condition report
about the residential premises at the end of the
residential tenancy agreement.

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or calt 1332 20. | 8




Smoke alarms

38. The landlord agrees to ensure that smoke
alarms are installed and maintained in the
residential premises in accordance with section
146A of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 if that section requires them
to be installed in the premises.

39. The landlord and tenant each agree not to
remove or interfere with the operation of a smoke
alarm installed on the residential premises unless
they have a reasonable excuse to do so.

Swimming pools
[Cross out this clause if there is no swimming pool]

40. The landlord agrees to ensure that the
requirements of the Swimming Pools Act 1992 have
been complied with in respect of the swimming
pool on the residential premises.

Additional terms
[Additional terms may be included in this agreement if:

(@) both the landlord and tenant agree to the terms,
and

(b) they do not conflict with the Residential Tenancies
Act 2010, the Residential Tenancies Regulation
2010 or any other Act, and

(c) they do not conflict with the standard terms of this
agreement.

ANY ADDITIONAL TERMS ARE NOT REQUIRED BY LAW
AND ARE NEGOTIABLE.]

Additional term—break fee
[Cross out this clause if not applicable]

41. The tenant agrees that, if the tenant ends the
residential tenancy agreement before the end of
the fixed term of the agreement, the tenant must
pay a break fee of the following amount:

41.1 if the fixed term is for 3 years or less, 6 weeks
rent if less than half of the term has expired
or 4 weeks rent in any other case, or

41.2 if the fixed term is for more than 3 years,
[specify amount]:

This clause does not apply if the tenant terminates
the residential tenancy agreement early for a reason
that is permitted under the Residential Tenancies
Act 2010.

Note: Permitted reasons for early termination include
destruction of residential premises, breach of the
agreement by the landlord and an offer of social
housing or a place in an aged care facility. Section 107
of the Residential Tenancies Act 2010 regulates the
rights of the landlord and tenant under this clause.

42. The landlord agrees that the compensation payable
by the tenant for ending the residential tenancy
agreement before the end of the fixed term is
limited to the amount specified in clause 41 and
any occupation fee payable under the Residential
Tenancies Act 2010 for goods left on the residential
premises.

Additional term—pets
[Cross out this clause if not applicable]

43. The tenant agrees not to keep animals on the
residential premises without obtaining the landlord’s
consent.

44. The landlord agrees that the tenant may keep the
following animals on the residential premises:

45. The tenant agrees to have the carpet professionally
cleaned or to have the residential premises
fumigated if the cleaning or fumigation is required
because animals have been kept on the residential
premises during the tenancy.

Insert any other agreed additional terms here.
Attach a separate page if necessary.

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 133220.| 9




Notes

1. Definitions
In this agreement:

landlord means the person who grants the right to
occupy residential premises under this agreement,
and includes a successor in title to the residential
premises whose interest is subject to that of the
tenant.

landlord’s agent means a person who acts as
the agent of the landlord and who (whether or not
the person carries on any other business) carries on
business as an agent for:

(a) the letting of residential premises, or

(b) the collection of rents payable for any tenancy
of residential premises.

rental bond means money paid by the tenant as
security to carry out this agreement.

residential premises means any premises or part
of premises (including any land occupied with the
premises) used or intended to be used as a place of
residence.

tenancy means the right to occupy residential
premises under this agreement.

tenant means the person who has the right to
occupy residential premises under this agreement,
and includes the person to whom such a right
passes by transfer or operation of the law and a
sub-tenant of the tenant.

2. Continuation of tenancy (if fixed term
agreement)

Once any fixed term of this agreement ends, the
agreement continues in force on the same terms as a
periodic agreement unless the agreement is terminated
by the landlord or the tenant in accordance with the
Residential Tenancies Act 2010 (see notes 3 and 4).
Clause 5 of this agreement provides for rent to be able
to be increased if the agreement continues in force.

3. Ending a fixed term agreement

If this agreement is a fixed term agreement it may be
ended by the landlord or the tenant by giving written
notice of termination. The notice may be given at any
time up until the end of the fixed term but cannot take
effect until the term ends. The landlord must give at
least 30 days notice and the tenant must give at least
14 days notice. '

4. Ending a periodic agreement

If this agreement is a periodic agreement it may be
ended by the landlord or the tenant by giving written
notice of termination. The notice may be given at any
time. The landlord must give at least 90 days notice and
the tenant must give at least 21 days notice.

5. Other grounds for ending agreement

The Residential Tenancies Act 2010 also authorises the
landlord and tenant to end this agreement on other
grounds. The grounds for the landlord include sale of
the residential premises, breach of this agreement by
the tenant and hardship. The grounds for the tenant
include sale of the residential premises (not revealed
when this agreement was entered into), breach of this
agreement by the landlord and hardship. For more
information refer to that Act or contact NSW Fair
Trading on 13 32 20.

6. Warning

It is an offence for any person to obtain possession

of the residential premises without an order of the
Consumer, Trader and Tenancy Tribunal if the tenant
does not willingly move out. A court can order fines and
compensation to be paid for such an offence.

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 13 32 20. | 10
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Signed by the landlord/agent
Name of landlord/agent

Signed by the tenant (1)
Name of tenant

RICHARD A=y

Signature of landlord/agent

Signature of tenant

on the

Srol day of Rpamir 202~

in the presence of (witness)

Name of witness

on the

DQLP day of /)Q\/CW'ST 2007,

in the presence of (witness)

Name of witness

ME LS04 PRAN (LS

/(’/&/far;nt Frr1_ .

Signature of witness

Signature of witness

Signed by the tenant (2)
Name of tenant

Signed by the tenant (3) and any other tenants
Name of tenant/s

Signature of tengaf” -

Signature of tenant/s

on the

TG dyof ko VL

in the presence of (witness)

Name of witness

on the

day of 20

in the presence of (witness)

Name of witness

MArianae F}/ﬁ’

Signature of witness

Signature of witness

P

The tenant acknowledges that, at or before the time of signing this residential tenancy agreement, the tenant was
given a copy of the New tenant checklist published by NSW Fair Trading.

Signature of tenant/s

7

For information about your rights and obligations as a landlord of tenant, contact:

(@) NSW Fair Trading on 13 32 20 or www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au, or

(b) Law Access NSW on 1300 888 529 or www.lawaccess.nsw.gov.au, or
(c) your local Tenants Advice and Advocacy Service at www.tenants.org.au

For information about your rights and responsibilities under this agreement, contact Fair Trading at www.fairtrading.nsw.gov.au or call 1332 20. | 11







The have made the following requests:

1. A meeting with the Bank to discuss the possible lease termination;

A statement from the Bank explaining reasons for the termination;

3. If bathroom works are undertaken, to be given an opportunity to move out temporarily at their own
expense, and then move back in after works are completed; and

4. If the Bank decides to sell the property, to be given an opportunity to participate in the sale.

N

So far all | have in terms of a response is that we are seeking the services of Australia to draft a response
for us. Are we recommending other courses of action in response to their requests, namely items 1, 3 and 4 above?

For your reference the attachments referred to in the paper are below.

Attachment 1-D13/152106
Attachment 2 -D12/215253
Attachment 3 - D13/217985
Attachment 4 - D12/235708
Attachment 5 - D13/216248

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

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 10:47 AM

To: NOLAN, Matt; GUTIERREZ, Linh

Cc: CHUNG, Phoenix; NOLAN, Matt

Subject: Complaints/Issues [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Matt and Linh,

| have asked Phoenix to compile the spread sheet of complaints from over the 12 months. However
after review, | can only find two few issues, which | would not really call complaints.

They are in relation to:

1. Neighbours removing tree on other side of fence (nothing to do with us) - March 2013 — see attached email
2. Neighbours not allowing access for fence repairs from their side — May 2013 — see attached email

All other emails from  over the past year have been for maintenance requests — not complaints.

Please let me know if you still require a spread sheet with these two items. | will start writing the paper today and
will note the lack of complaints in the past 12 months.

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







Cc:
Subject: RE: Unit 1 / 10 Carabella Street, Kirribilli [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Dear Matt and Linh

| work with . Thank you for these instructions, and for providing the relevant background information. We
estimate that our fees will be approximately (excluding GST) for the following scope of work:

1. review background documentation (lease, correspondence and file notes provided); and
2. prepare and settle a response to the tenant on the basis which you have outlined.

This estimate has regard to the discounted hourly rates agreed between and RBA, on the basis that | will
mainly do the legal work, under supervision from as follows (figures exclude GST):

Partner &

Consultant

Senior Associate

Should work in addition to the scope set out above be required, then we will seek your approval to prior to proceeding.

Please confirm that you are happy for us to proceed with the initial scope above, and we will open a file and issue you
with a formal engagement letter.

If we have your approval today, then we will be in a position to provide you with a draft response to the tenant by
close of business on Tuesday.

Kind regards

From: NOLAN, Matt

Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2013 10:59

To:

Cc: GUTIERREZ, Linh; FRITH, Marianne

Subject: Unit 1 / 10 Carabella Street, Kirribilli [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi
Thanks very much for your time on the phone earlier.

As per discussion, could you please provide reverse brief with quotation in accordance with the Legal Services Multi-
Use List Deed between and the Commonwealth of Australia (LSMUL Deed). The RBA request your
assistance in drafting an appropriate response to the letter received from the lessee’s of the
above referenced property.

The RBA intent to determine the lease at the end of the term. The letter from the is somewhat emotive
and contemplates actions beyond the nature of the contractual relationship. We are looking for a polite, un-emotive



response that clearly articulates our rights as landlord to terminate the lease. We are happy to extend the formal
notice period in an endeavour to demonstrate reasonableness.

| have also attached a file note from 2012 detailing communication with prior to entering into the
current lease, which contemplates the Bank'’s intent to require vacant possession at the end of the term.

Noting this letter has been sent directly to the Governor of the RBA we are requesting a timely response. If you
require any further information please contact me on

Kind regards,

Matt Nolan | Chief Manager | Facilities Management Department
RESERVE BANK OF AUSTRALIA | 65 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000
| w: www.rba.gov.au

This e-mail message (along with any attachments) is intended only for the named addressee and could contain information that is confidential or
privileged. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any dissemination, copying or use of any of the information is prohibited. Please notify
us immediately by return e-mail if you are not the intended recipient and delete all copies of the original message and attachments.

This footnote also confirms that this message has been checked for computer viruses.
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